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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023. the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Owt upitivi un the fiuancial statements does not cover the othet information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
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controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the refated disclosures in the financial stalements or, if sach disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on July 11, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement an the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(2)

(h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Dircctors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 2.24 to the financial statements;

ii)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv)  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
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Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material

misstatement.

v)  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi)  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Na\me oy )

per Navneet Rai Kabra ACCOUNTANTS
Partner :
Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBNE1788
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 2 June 2023

CHARTERED
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we

state that:

OO

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(i (@

(b)

(i) (a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during
the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noted on such verification.

The title deeds of all immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name
of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on such physical verification.

As disclosed in note 2.11 (b) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on
the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in
the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by
the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement te report on
clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, related to medical and healthcare services, and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
and there have been serious delays in large number of cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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(a)

(b)

(b)

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and service
tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The-Company-has-not-defaulted-in-repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
37 P
of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the preferential allotment or private placement of shares. The funds raised, have
been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. The Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of fully or partially or optionally convertible
debentures during the year.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by
cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.
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(xii)
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(xv)

(xvi)
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(xviii)

(xix)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

CHA&?{’_G |
; \ACCOUNTANTS) =

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii}(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system comimcnsuiate with the size and natuic of its

business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 163.19 million in the current year and
amounting to Rs. 110.10 million in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we have
taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 2.35 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
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year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
Clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

N;Mu%@ ]

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBNE1788
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of
SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SPANV
Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles; and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

OJéTWluJ”(&F —

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 23102328BGSBNE1788
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1(a) 3,377.60 3,468.29
Capital work-in-progress 2.1(c) 2.57 -
Intangible assets 2.1(b) 6.02 12.47
Right-of-use assets 2.25 - 85.83
Financial assets
(i) Investments 22 - 0.95
(ii) Other financial assets 2.3(a) 10.91 8.65
Non-current tax assets (net) 28 43.77 45.39
Other non-current assets 2.4 69.76 13.98
Total non-current assets 3,510.63 3,635.56
Current assets
Inventories 2.5 49.11 5229
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 2.6 164.23 99.84
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.7(a) 2.88 16.42
(iii) Other financial assets 2.3(b) 12.51 28.29
Other current assets 29 17.01 27.53
Total current assets 245.74 224.37
Total assets 3,756.37 3,859.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.10 (a) 17.49 8.37
Other equity 2.10 (b) 1,621.12 1,119.94
Total equity 1,638.61 1,128.31
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.11 (a) 1,753.91 1,516.69
(ii) Lease liabilities 2.25 - 45.56
Provisions 2.13 11.39 7.18
Total non-current liabilities 1,765.30 1,569.43
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.11(b) 144.20 670.08
(ii) Lease liabilities 2.25 - 9.18
(iii) Trade payables 2.14
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
N 1.98 3.18
small enterprises; and
(b? Total outs.tandmg dues of credltf)rs other than 168.83 298.80
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 2.12 22.50 87.64
Provisions 2.15 8.68 4.41
Other current liabilities 2.16 6.27 88.90
Total current liabilities 352.46 1,162.19
Total liabilities 3,756.37 3,859.93
Significant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associalcs LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

qud’(c«‘

per Navneet Rai Kabra B ¥Abhinay
Partner Director
DIN:01681273

Membership No: 102328

Place: Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023

Date: 02 June 2023
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SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operations 2.17 1,445.01 1,719.59
Other income 2.18 23.85 13.00
Total income 1,468.86 1,732.59
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 38s5.11 476.00
Decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
Siramarits 2.19 3.18 8.85
Employee benefits expense 220 276.47 344.45
Finance costs 222 211.70 271.14
Depreciation and amortisation expense 221 227.24 191,05
Other expenses 2.23 775.82 797.48
Total expenses 1,879.52 2,088.97
Loss before tax (410.66) (356.38)
Tax expense
- Deferred tax (credit) / charge 233 (0.35) 1.40
- Tax pertaining to earlier years 2.33 1.34 -
Total tax expense 0.99 1.40
Loss for the year (A) (411.65) (357.78)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 1.21 1.95
- Income tax effect (0.35) (0.51)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (B) 0.86 1.44
Total comprehensive loss for the year (A+B) (410.79) (356.34)
Eaming per share (face value of share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic and Diluted 2.28 (29.98) (44.86)
Significant accounting policies 1.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

mm»}(@»‘

per’Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership No: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Spanv Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
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SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1. Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before tax

Adjustments for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Expected credit loss for trade receivable
Guarantee commission expense
Interest income
Liabilities no longer required written back
Loss on sale of investment
Finance cost

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Adjustrnents for
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets and other assets
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities, provisions and other liabilities
Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Income-taxes paid, net of refund
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities (A)

II. Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Interest income

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

III. Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Receipts from long-term borrowings

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from sale of investments

(Repayment) / Proceeds of short-term borrowings (net)

Payment of lease obligations

Finance cost

Net cash flows generated / (used in) from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(410.66) (356.38)
227.24 191.05
0.14 s
31.19 37.32
3.05 -
(2.62) (11.52)
(14.00) -
0.75 -
208.65 271.14
43.74 131.61
(95.58) (48.76)
3.18 8.85
31.06 (30.48)
(220.01) 304.39
(237.61) 365.61
2.58 (38.53)
(235.03) 327.08
(78.84) (599.09)
0.04 -
88.77 -
(91.03) -
0.36 11.50
(80.70) (587.59)
(2,368.18) (171.70)
2,605.40 -
860.59 375.20
0.20 -
(525.88) 417.48
(64.02) (17.40)
(205.92) (344.21)
302.19 259.37
(13.54) (1.14)
16.42 17.56
2.88 16.42

a) The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) - Statement of cash flows:

b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- On current accounts
Total

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

(ol
per Navneet Ra1 Kabra nay
Partner = irector

DIN:01681273

Membership No: 102328

Place: Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023

Date: 02 June 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.69 245
2,19 13.97
2.88 16.42

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Spanv Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No of shares Amount
At 1 April 2021 68,32,010 6.83
Add: shares issued during the year 15,34,407 1.53
At 31 March 2022 83,66,417 8.37
Add: shares issued during the year 91,19,834 9.12
At 31 March 2023 1,74,86,251 17.49
b) Other Equity
Other equity
Particulars ; Reserve and surplus Capital Total of Other equity
Securities premium | Retained earnings contribution

Dalance as at ! April 2021 1,349.62 (247.02) - 1,102 60
Loss for the year - (357.78) (357.78)
Issue of shares 373.68 - - 373.68
Other comprehensive income for the year - 1.44 - 1.44
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,723.30 (603.36) - 1,119.94
Loss for the year - (411.65) - (411.65)
[ssue of shares 851.47 - - 851.47
Guarantee Commission - - 60.50 60.50
Other comprehensive income for the year - 0.86 - 0.86
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,574.77 (1,014.15) 60.50 1,621.12

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/ E300004

Namﬁ”‘eﬁ«‘qr

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership No: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Spanv Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

hinay
Ditrector
DIN:01681273

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02 June 2023
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mit Kedarnath Somani



SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Company Overview

SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private company domiciled in India and
was incorporated on 01 January 2018. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical
and healthcare services. The registered office of the company is located at 44, Parwana Bhawan, Kingsway,

Nagpur, Maharashtra - 440001.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 02 June 2023.
1.2  Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been prepared in
accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™), as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule

11T of the Act.

All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value - refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Defined benefit plan - plan assets measured at fair value

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity wiih the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have made in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions




SPANY Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data er unlcss otherwise stated)

the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 2.33 — Recognition of deferred tax assets,
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.27 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial

assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of

such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities record=d in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active matkets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of mp{ugg,




SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 2.32 for further disclosures.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a Discounted cash flow model (“DCF model”). The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth

rate used for extrapolation purposes.

1.3  Significant accounting policies
A. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating
cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii.  itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting date.

iv.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle




SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

B. Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

The Company's Board of directors determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and for other non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically-the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and the
A0S fdS8endent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations;z ;-




SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

above.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values
is included in Note 2.32 — financial instruments.

C. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services and
sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical professional
services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for components of
variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other rights and obligations
as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and
deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the point in time for the outpatient
hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to the inpatients
hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is recognised over

the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital services), where the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected
value method to estimate the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The most likely amount is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value
method is used for those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the

transaction price and recognised as revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients who are
undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial

assets in section (m) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement. AU
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CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial instruments —
initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a

customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Company performs under the contract (ie., transfers control of the related goods or services to the

customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to the
extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates taxable

income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
at the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

rosnect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and

T

Al l\-at.a

interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probabie thal the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and seftle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets

are expected to be settled or recovered.
Goods and Service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and service taxes paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

E. Property, plant and equipment

Frechold land is carried at cost net of accumulated impairment, if any. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of tax / duty credit availed, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment com prises its purchase price, including
Sk duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any_directly

.%— ble cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costsof
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dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,

the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use, and

estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which il is located.

Amounts paid towards the acqu isition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are
recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment
recognised as of April 01, 2021 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that

carrying value as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equ ipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation/Amortisation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as
estimated by the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance with
the Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 8-13

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vchioles 8

During the year, based on the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset and to align with the policies of

the Holding Company, the Management has revised the estimated useful life of Medical and surgical equipment

from the existing 2-12 years to 8-13 years and of Vehicles from the existing 10 years to 8 years and revised the

depreciable values of its assets 10 fully depreciate them without residual values. Due to this change, depreciation

for the year has decreased by Rs. 1289 Million. Further the Company has considered the change in useful life
i as change in estimates. AGUFE
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Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has estimated the
useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to

the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:
e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers the impact
of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual

values.

F. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included

in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its other intangibles recognised as of April
01, 2021 (date of transition to Ind AS) measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its

deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash

flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6
Patent 3
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G. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

H. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease

payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
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iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

1. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and drugs and surgical instruments are valued at lower of
cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by item

basis.
J. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such

transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

y bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared

The Compan
sets are allocated. These

separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual as
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate
can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,

industries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

dwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication ~
.tes the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairmenif” 22,
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loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the

reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

K. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit

and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent

liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
L. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction

in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratui

benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect ofid ;=
d by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned ald "
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returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The
calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the

projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability (asset) as
a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses in the
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account on the

earlier of amendment or curtailment.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash bonus, if the

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the past service provided
by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave during the
financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences at the end of the
financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The company
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related

service.

alated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
ent purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on-
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the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current
liabilities in the Balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least

twelve months after the reporting date.

M. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the

objective of both holding to collect contractual cash tlows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

= Financial assets at amortised cost

B Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

= Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;

and
= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal apdifergston the principal amount outstanding. :
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This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised

cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-current
financial assets. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 2.32.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

A “financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

o The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and
e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. The
Company’s debt instruments are not fair value through OCI assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch

that would otherwise arise.

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable

election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is

irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains 1@@? all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financialasset.” ¢
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If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be

required to repay.
Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to

recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original

EIR.
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial

guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These
gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recoguised iu the

Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial instruments are classified as a liability or equity components based on the terms of the contract and in
accordance with Ind AS 32 (Financial instruments: Presentation). Financial instrument issued by the Company
classified as equity is carried at its transaction value and shown within "equity". Financial instrument issued by
the Company classified as liability is initially recognised at fair value (issue price). Subsequent to initial
recognition, such Financial instrument is fair valued through the statement of profit or loss. On modification of
Financial instrument from liability to equity, the Financial instrument is recorded at the fair value of Financial
instrument classified as equity and the difference in fair value is recorded as a gain/ loss on modification in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
sently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or_

A RS 3k ilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and

loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered

an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

O. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

P. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Board of Directors is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating gedoiéinsand accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

)
()
A




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Q. Corporate social responsibility

The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure to the statement of profit and loss.

R. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the

Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

S. New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 Apr 2022. The Company has not early adopted any other standard or amendment that has

been issued but is not yet effective:
- Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
- Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments Classification, Recognition and Derecognition
- Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment
- Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. On March
31, 2023, the MCA, issued certain amendments to Ind AS. The amendments relate to the following standards:

- Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

— Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
- Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

These amendments are effective from April 01, 2023. The Company believes that the aforementioned
amendments will not materially impact the financial statements of the Company.
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SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.1(c) Capital Work in Progress

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying amount
Balance as at beginning of the year = i
Additions 2.57 -
Balance as at end of the year 2.57 -
For capital work in progress, ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CwIP Total
<1 year I' 1-2 years | 2-3 years more than 3 years °
-Projects in Proorace 2.57 ! = ! = = 257
Total 2.57 | - | - - 2.57

There are no capital work in progress projects, whose completion is overdue or has exceed its cost compared to its original plan as at 31 March

2023 and 31 March 2022.




SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.2

23

(2)

b

24

25

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current investments
Investment in subsidiaries - valued at cost
Equity shares
Nil (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid up held in Medisearch - 0.85
Lifesciences Private Limited
Nil (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid up held in Kingsway Institute of - 0.10
Health sciences Private Limited
- 0.95
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - .95
Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments - -
Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)
Non-current
Deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months* 371 145
Security deposits 7.20 7.20
Total 10.91 8.65
* Includes deposits placed with banks which are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.
Current
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 2.34) 8.69 15.72
Interest accrued on bank deposits - 0.04
Other receivables* 201 11.18
Security deposits 1.82 135
Total 12.51 28.29
*includes receivables from related parties. For details Refer note 2.26
Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 17.11 13.98
Prepaid expenses 124 -
Prepaid guarantee commission 51.41 -
Total 69.76 13.98
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 49.11 52.29
49.11 52.29

Total




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.6

Trade receivables (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured)

Considered good - Unsecured
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Trade receivables - credit impaired - unsecured
Less: Allowance for credit impairment
Total

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
246.18 150.59

(81.95) (50.75)
164.23 99.84
164.23 99.84

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable are due from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days,

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Less than 6 Total
Not dues months 6 months -1 year|  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(g’godU“d‘Sp"ted ifrads; receivebleszconsitered 70.10 83.50 57.69 30.55 272 1.62 246.18
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant
increase in credit risk - - N B B B -
(iif) Undisputed Trade receivables-credit
impaired - i B - = " -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered
good : i i i i i )
(v) Disputed Trade receivables- significant
increase in credit risk 3 = = g : = v
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit impaired - - - - -
Total 246.18
Less : Allowance for expected credit loss (81.95)
Balance at the end of the year 164.23
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Less than 6 Total
Not dues months 6 months -1 year|  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered 103.99 31.40 15.20 S = - 150.59
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- significant e
increase in credit risk . = - . - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables-credit -
impaired 3 = = - = 5
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered -
good S i = = s %
(v) Disputed Trade receivables- significant -
increase in credit risk a = i - = -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit impaired -
Total 150.59
(50.75)

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss
Balance at the end of the year

99.84




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.7

a)

b)

2.8

2.9

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.69 245
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 2.19 13.97
Total 2.88 16.42
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
. As at As at
Particulars 1 April20g2  Cosh flows e 31 March 2023
Short term borrowings 670.08 (525:88) - 144,20
Current and Non- Current lease liabilities 54.74 (64.01) 9.27 -
Long term borrowings 1,516.69 237.22 - 1,753.91
Total liabilities from financing activities 2.241,51 {352.67) 9.27 1,898.11
z Asat Asat
Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash flows Sauer: 31 March 2022
Short term borrowings 252.60 417.48 - 670.08
Current and Non- Current lease liabilities 62.62 (17.40) 9.52 54.74
Long term borrowings 1,688.39 (171.70) - 1,516.69
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,003.61 228.38 9.52 2,241.51
The Other’ column includes the effect of accretion of interest on lease liabilities.
Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance tax (net of provision for taxation) 43.77 45.39
43.77 45.39
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers 6.92 5.74
Prepaid expenses 3.47 9.34
Advance to employees 0.56 0.31
Advance to related party (Refer note 2.26) - 12.10
Balance with government authorities - 0.03
Prepaid guarantee commission 6.06 -
17.01 27.53

Total




SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statemeuts for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

N N As at As at
2,10 (a) Equity share capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised
Equity shares
25,000,000 (31 March 2022: 25,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 1 each 250.00 250.00
250.00 250.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
17,486,251 (31 March 2022: 8,366,417) equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid-up 17.49 8.37
17.49 8.37
i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of Rs. 1 each, fully paid up ding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
At the commencement of the year 83,66,417 837 68,32,010 6.83
Shares issued during the year 91,19,834 9.12 15,34,407 1.53
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,74,86,251 17.49 83,66,417 8.37

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to eanity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1/- each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held, In the event of liquidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the

number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

iii) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of Rs. 1 each, fully paid up

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number of shares % of Holding  Number of shares % of Holding

Name of shareholder
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 89,17,989 51.00% - -
Spark Mall and Parking Private Limited 35,00,133 20.02% 35,00,133 41.84%
Mrs. Shruti Anand Sancheti 4,78,576 2.74% 5,77,307 6.90%
Mr. Nirbhay Sancheti 4,54,531 2.60% 5,77,307 6.90%
Total 1.33,51,229 46.54,747

d from shareholders regarding beneficial interest the above shareholding represents both

As per the records of the Company including its register of shareholders and other declarations
legal and beneficial interest.

iv) Shares held by holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or nssociate of holding company

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Name of the shareholder
Number of shares %% of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
Krishna institute of Medical Sciences Limited $9,17,989 51.00% - -
(v)  The Company has not issued bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period
(vi)  The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period.
(vii}  Details of shares held by Promoters *
As at 31 March 2023
No of shares . B 5
S.No. Particulars Promoter name at beginning of Change during  No of shares at % of total shares % change during
the year end of the year the year
the year
1 Equity shares of Rs, | each fully paid K:'.lshna Ins.m.ute af Medical ; 89,17,989 $9,17,989 51.00% 100.00%
Sciences Limited
2 ) . Spark Mall and Parking o,
Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid Private Limited 35,00,133 - 35,00,133 20.02% 0.00%
3 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid g;ﬂ:ﬁmw I 3,69,950 . 3,69,950 2.12% 0,00%
4 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid Mr. Nirbhay Sancheti 5,77,307 (1,22,776) 4,54,531 2.60% 21.27%
Equity shares of Rs, 1 each fully paid Sy Abhay 3,84,871 . 3,84,871 220% 0.00%
6 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Mrs. Shruti Anand Sancheti 5,177,307 (98,731) 4,78,576 2.74% -17.10%
7  Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Mr. Akshay Sancheti 3,84,872 - 3,84,872 220% 0.00%
Total 57,94,440 86,96,482 1,44,90,922 82.87%
As at 31 March 2022
No of shares 9 - .
S.No. Particulars Promoter name at beginning of Change during  No of shares at % of total shares * change during
the year end of the year the year
the year
. ) Spark Mall and Parking o
1 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid Private Limited - 35,00,133 35,00,133 41.84% 100,00%
Bquity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid g;:‘h?"“’d Dbiscridhai 3,48,930 21,020 3,69,950 4.42% 6.02%
3 Equily shaes of Rs. 1 each fully paid Mr. Nirbhay Sancheti 13,14,078 (7,36,771) 5,77,307 6.90% -56,07%
4 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid ﬁ;‘;; mveer Abhay 13,18,854 (9,33,983) 3,84,871 4.60% 0825
s Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid Mzs. Shruti Anand Sanchet 17,47,328 (11,70,021) 5,77,307 6.90% 66,96%
6  Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid Mr. Akshay Sancheti = 3,84,872 3,84,872 4.60% 100.00%
Total 47,29,190 10,65,250 57.94,440 69.26%

* Promoters are as per the annual return filed by the Company.




SPANV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

. Asat Asat
2.10(b)  Other equity 31 March2023 31 March 2022
A) Securities premium (refer below note 1)
Opening balance 1,723.30 1,349.62
Add: Addition during the year 851.47 373.68
Closing balauce 2,574.77 1,72330
B) Capitsl contribution (refer below note 2)
Bal as per last financial - -
Add: Additions during the year 60.50 -
Closing balance 60.50 -
C) Retained earnings (refer below note 3)
Balance as per last financial (603.36) (247.02)
Add: Loss for the year (411.65) (357.78)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 0.86 1.4
Closing balance (1,014.15) (603.36)
Total other equity 1,621.12 1.119.94
Nature and purpose of reserves:
1. Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares, It is utilised in
2. Capital contribution
Financial gy are gnised as a financial liability at the time of issue of guarantee. The liability is measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount
determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.
‘Where guarantee in relation to loang or other payables of subsidiary is provided for no fair values of such guarantees are accounted as capital contribution in
the books of the Company.

3. Retained earnings

Retained eamings are the profits/losses (net of appropriations) of the Company eamed till date, including items of other comprehensive income.




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC303510

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.11 Borrowings (at amortised cost)

(a) Non-current borrowings
Secured
Term loans from banks
- Term loans from HDFC (refer note i below)
- Term loan from Axis Bank (refer note v below)
- Term loans from Canara Bank (refer note v below)
- Term loans from Indian Overseas Bank (refer note v below)
- Vehicle loan from Axis Bank (refer note v below)

Term loans from financial institutions

- Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (refer note v below)
- Hero Fincorp Limited (refer note v below)

- Profectus Capital Private Limited (refer note v below)

Total loans from banks (A)
Unsecured

Unsecured loans from SMS Envoclean Private Limited

Unsecured loans from related party
Unsecured loans from Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limited (refer note ii below)

Unsecured loans from Prakash Khetan

Unsecured loans from Pramod Gandhi
Unsecured loans from Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (refer note iii below)

Total unsecured loans (B)
Total non-current borrowings (A+B)
(b) Current borrowings

Secured
Working capital loans from banks (refer note iv below)

Term loans from banks
Current maturities of long term debts

Total loans from banks (A)
Unsecured loan from others (B) (refer note vi below)

Total current borrowings (A+B)

Notes:

i  HDFC Bank term loan is secured by:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,503.91 -

- 14.63

- 244.57

. 759.31

- 0.90

- 17.12

- 19.99

- 4.47
1,503.91 1,060.99
- 84.69
49.00 238.18

- 2.80

- 130.04

201.00 -

250.00 455.70
1,753.91 1,516.69
108.18 187.27
36.01 191.87
144.20 379.14

= 290.94
144,20 670.08

- A first mortgage and charge on all Company's immovable properties, present and future, pertaining to the project together with all structures and

appurtenances thereon, present and future,

- A first charge by way of hypothecation on all company's (i) tangible movable assets, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and
accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future; (ii) intangible assets, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled
capital, intellectual property rights and undertaking, present and future; (iii) current assets and receivables, including book debts, operating cash flows,
receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future; and (iv) all bank accounts and reserves of the company
including but not limited to other reserves and any other bank account of Company, wherever maintained and account(s) in substitution thereof.

- Further, the loan is secured by Corporate Guarantee given by Holding Company i.e. Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

- The loan is repayable in 36 Quarterly instalments starting from December 2023 to March 2033. The loan carries an interest rate of 3 months T Bill Rate at

the date of disbursement plus spread (160 bps), currently interest rate is 8.15% p.a. (31 March 2022 : Nil)

ii  Unsecured loan obtained from Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limited (Enterprises under control or joint control of KMP and other relatives)

carries a Bank floating rate currently 8.15% p.a (31 March 2022 : 12%) (refer note 2.26).

i Unsecured loan obtained from Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (Holding Company) carries a Bank floating rate currently 8.15% p.a (31 March

2022 : Nil) (refer note 2.26).




iv

vi

vii

Working capital loan from HDFC Bank is secured by:
- A first mortgage and charge on all immovable properties, present and future, pertaining to the project together with all structures and appurtenances

thereon, present and future,

- A first charge by way of hypothecation on (i) tangible movable assets, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future; (ii) intangible assets, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital,
intellectual property rights and undertaking, present and future; (iii) current assets and receivables, Including book debts, operating cash flows, receivables,
commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future; and (iv) all bank accounts and reserves including but not limited to
other reserves and any other bank account, whereever maintained and account(s) in substitution thereof.

- Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited,
- The loan carries an interest rate of 3 months T Bill Rate + 1.6% (spread), presently 8.4% (31 March 2022: Nil)

Term loans from banks and financial institutions carry an interest rate of 8% to 14.7%, (31 March 2022: 8% to 14.7%). These loans were repaid during the
year.

Unsecured loans from others consists of loans taken from a few doctors and other parties that are repayable on demand. These loans carry an interest rate of
11% to 15%, (31 March 2022: 11% to 15%). These loans were repaid during the year.

The quarterly returns or statements of the current assets filed by the Company with Bank are in agreement with the books of accounts.




SPANYV Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

2.12 Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Current
Capital creditors - 28.69
Employee related liabilities 1.30 28.42
Security deposits payable 3.53 6.32
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings* 17.67 24,21
Total 22,50 87.64
*includes payable to related parties. For details Refer note 2.26
2.13 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 2.27) 1139 7.18
Total 11.39 7.18
2.14 Trade payables (at amortised cost)
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 2.30) 198 3.18
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 168.83 298.80
Total 170.81 301.98
The above includes payable to related party. For details Refer note 2.26
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms,
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2023
Particulars Current but not Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Total cmsxml{.hng ducs of micro enterprises 030 1.68 i ) i 1.98
and small enterprises
(u} Total outs-tandmg dues ofcredl!.ors other than 7214 88.23 8.46 : } 168.83
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises - - - = ]
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 170.81
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2022
Particulars Current but not Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
P - 3.18 - - - 3.18
and small enterprises
) atal cstamling siues of ovedhoes o e 102.24 167.83 28.71 0.02 5 298.80
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iti) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises - - s - - N
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - @ = 3
Balance at the end of the year 301.98
2.15 Short term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 2.27) - 0.02
Provision for Compensated absences 8.68 4.39
Total 8.68 4.41
2,16 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 3.85 84.43
Contract liabilities (Refer note 2.34) 242 4.47
6.27 88.90

Total
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2.17 Revenue from operations
A Revenue from contract with customers

Income from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.34)
Income from hospital services
Income from pharmacy

Total

B Other operating income
Other hospital income

Total

Total income from operations (A+B)
2.18 Other income

Interest income on:

- fixed deposits with banks

- income tax refunds

- loans to related parties (Refer note 2.26)
- Others

Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

Total

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
855.19 1,015.71
582.79 697.08
1,437.98 1,712.79
7.03 6.80
7.03 6.80
1,445.01 1,719.59
0.32 -
2.30 0.17
- 10.55
- 0.79
14.00 -
7.23 1.48
23.85 13.00
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2.19 Decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

Total
2,20 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 2.27)
Staff welfare expenses

Total
2,21 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 2.1(a))
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 2.1(b))
Amortisation of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 2.25)

Total
2.22 Finance costs

Interest expense

- term loans

- others
Loan from related parties (Refer note 2.26)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer note 2.25)
Guarantee commission expense (Refer note 2.26)
Other borrowing cost

Total
2.23 Other expenses

Consultancy charges
Housekeeping and security service charges
Power and fuel
Catering and patient welfare expenses
Rent (Refer note 2.25)
Tests and investigations
Repairs and maintenance expenses

- Medical equipment

- Hospital building and others
Printing and stationery
Payment to auditor (Refer Note below)
Legal and professional charges
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Advertisement and publicity
Communication expenses
Provision of expected credit loss for trade receivables
Insurance
Subscriptions and membership fees
Loss on sale of investment
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note: Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
Statutory audit fee
Total

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
52.29 61.14
49.11 52.29
3.18 8.85
255.13 322.65
20.55 21.70
0.79 0.10
276.47 344.45
187.22 172.48
9.07 6.81
30.95 11.76
227.24 191.05
114.16 174.92
28.96 0.74
41.38 56.14
9.27 9.52
3.05 -
14.88 29.82
211.70 271.14
417.42 400.32
48.18 45.29
60.98 56.92
2293 28.11
9.13 7.11
26.74 24.34
23.25 30.86
9.29 8.25
6.04 6.28
2.00 1.05
49.10 59.87
33.08 36.73
541 11.98
11.72 13.89
221 0.95
31.19 37.32
10.83 5.68
1.12 0.81
0.75 -
0.14 -
1.76 4.66
255 17.06
775.82 797.48
2.00 1.05
2.00

1.05
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2.24 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities
. As at As at
1
[Particutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Bank Guarantee issued - 176.45

(b) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which
components of their employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations, for
Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the retrospective applicability of the judgement. However, from
the date of order, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement. The Company will evaluate the same and update its position
for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.
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2.25 Lease
Operating leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has lease contract for Medical Equipment used in its operations. Lease of Medical Equipment generally have lease term between 7 - 8 years.
Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

The Company also has certain leases of Medical Equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of medical equipment low value. The Company

applies the ‘short-term lease * and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Medical Equipment Total
As at 1 April 2021 97.59 97.59
Addition = -
Amortization expense charged to P&L -11:76 117767
As at 31 March 2022 85.83 85.83
Addition - =
Amortization expense charged to P&L 30.95 30.95
Asset transferred to Property, plant and equipment (54.88) (54.88)
As at 31 March 2023 - =
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is Nil (31 March 2022: 10% with a maturity of 2026).
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under borrowings) and the movements during the period:
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance as on 1 April 54,74 62.62
Accretion of interest charged to P&L 9.27 9.52
Payments (64.01) (17.40)
As at 31 March - 54.74
Current - 9.18
Non-current - 45.56
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 30.95 11.76
Interest expense on lease liabilities 9.27 9.52
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets (included in other expenses) 9.13 7.11
49.35 28.39

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 16.35 in 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs. 24.51).

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these

extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments:

As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Within one year - 17.35

Between one and five years . 56.40
After more than five years = =

- 73.75

Total
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2.26 Related party disclosures

) Parties where control exists ar where significant influence exists nnd with whom transsetions have taken piace during the current year or previous year

Nature of relationship Nume of related parties Designation
Directors Dr. Bhaskara Rao Bollineni Director (w.e f 01 Seplember 2022)
Mr. Amit Kedamnath Somani Director
Mr. Kaza Raina Kishore Director (w.e.f 18 March 2023)
Dr. Bollineni Abhinay Director (w.e.£01 September 2022)
Mr. Prameels Rani Yalsmanchili Direclor (w.e.f 18 March 2023)
Dr. Rajl dhesh Khandelwal Director (w.e.f 14 Oclober 2022)
Dr. Vasudeo Rajeshwar Ridhorkar Director
Mr. Akshay Abhay Sancheti Director (w.e.f 14 Oclober 2022)
Dr. Pramod Gandhi Direclor (Resigned w.e.f 01 September 2022)
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari Director (w.e.f 01 Seplember 2022)
Key Management personnel (KMP) Dr. Prakash Khelan » ing Director (Resigned w.e.f 01 September 2022)
Mr. Nilesh Mundad, Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f 31 October 2022)

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited (ceased w.e.f 26 May 2022)

Kingsway Instituls of Health sciences Private Limited {ceased w.e.f25 April 2022)

Dr. Rajshree Pramod Gandhi (ceased w.e.f 01 September 2022)

Holding Company (w.e.f 01 September 2022)
Subsidiary

Relative of Directors

Anuradha Ridhorkar
| Enterprises under conirol or joini conirol of RviF anu ommer v ecitag Hoapuisliy Frivate Limiied
relatives Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limited

Kingsway Institute of Heallh sciences Private Limited (w.e F25 April 2022)

(b) Transactions with related parties

For the year ended For (he year ended

| Particulai
i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Professional fee
Dr. Pramod Gandhi 5.15 10.75
Dr. Vasudeo Rajeshwar Ridhorkar 13.20 1342
Dr. Rajshree Pramod Gandhi 0.74 2,60
Anuradha Ridhorkar 034 0.64
Dr. Prakash Khetan 4.07 9.31
IL.  Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
Medisearch Lifesciences Privale Limited - 194 30
Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limiled - 61.40
Dr. Vasudeo Rajeshwar Ridhorkar - 5.50
III.  Purchase of medical consumables and pharmacy
Dr. Vasudeo Rajeshwar Ridhorkar - 0.02
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 119 -
1V.  Corporate guaraniee received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 1,850.00 -
Y. Commission expense on corporate guarantees
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 3.05 -
VL. Capital contribution on account of financial guarantee
Kirishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 60.50 -
Vil. Housekeeping Expenses
Veetrag Hospitality Private Limited 0,07 0.03
VIIL  Unsecured lonn taken
Dr. Pramod Gandhi 8.87 178.50
Dr, Prakash Khelan 47.00 141.30
Spark Malt and Parking Solutions Private Limited 708.53 357.00
st insuiuee of Medical Selences Limhed 291.00 =
IX. Repayment of loan (including interest)
Dr. Pramod Gandhi 159.37 87.75
Dr. Prakash Khetan 51.77 219.89
Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limited 922.48 533.80
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 90.00 -
X. Interest on Unsecured loan
Dr. Pramod Gandhi 7.53 14,37
Dr. Prakash Khetan 1.97 5.93
Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limited 24.77 35.84
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 7.11 -
XI. Managerial remuneration *
Mr. Nilesh Mundada 325 -
XII. Legal and professional charges
Kingsway Institute of Health Sciences Private Limited 18.04 -
XIII. Rates and Taxes
Kingsway Inslitute of Health Sciences Private Limited 0.72 -
XIV. Issue of Shares
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 800.03 2
X¥. Loans and advances given
Medisearch Lifesciences Privale Limited - 0.01
XVI. Repayment of Loans and advances
Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limited 12.10 -
0.15 0.04

Kingsway Institute of Health sciences Privale Limiled

XVIL Others
Subsidiaries
Cost of services received
Cost of services paid
Interest Income
Spark Mall and Parking Solulions Private Limited
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2,26 Related party disclosures (continued)
() The balances payable to related parties

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
e
I. Unsecured Loan
Dr. Pramod Gandhi - 130.04
Dr, Prakash Khetan - 2.80
Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Privais Limited 49.00 238.18
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 201.00 -
I Loans and Advances
Kingsway Institute of Health sciences Privale Limited - 12.10
Medisearch Lifesciences Private Limiled - 0.15
I, Trade Payable
Dr. Pramod Gandhi - 2.54
Dr. Vasudeo Rajeshwar Ridhorkar 0.99 4.06
Dr. Rajshree Pramod Gandhi - 0.86
Anuradha Ridhorkar - 0.08
Dr. Frakash Khetan - 125
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 0.87 -
IV. Corporate guarantee received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 1,850.00 -
V. Capital contribution on account of financial guarantee
Krishna Institule of Medical Sciences Limiled 57.47 -
VI. Interest Payable
Dr. Pramod Gandhi - 12.93
Spark Mall and Parking Solutions Private Limited 1.87 -
Krishna Institule of Medical Sciences Limited 6.33 -

(d) For certain loans availed by the Comp few Di and P of the Company have given personal guarantee. Refer Nole 2.11 for details

*The managerial personinel are covered by the Company's grauity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along wilh other employees of the Company, The proportionate amouni of
gratuily, compensaled absonce pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in the uf ioned discl s these are di ined on an actuarial basis for the Company

as a whole.

Terms and condilions:
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulting
settled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of lhe transaction date. None of the balances are secured.

di ivables and bles includi ial assets and ial lisbilities bal are
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227 Employee benefits

(i) Defined benefit plan
The Company operale post-cmploy

applicable as at the balance sheet date. The gratuity plan entitles on employee,

jefined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provi
who has rendered at least five years of cantinuous services, to

sions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as
reccive one-halfl month's salury for each year of

Catporation of India. The Company's

d by trust formed for this purpose and is

completed services al the time of reti texit. The gratuity fund is
obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for bpsed on aclw

arinl valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit eredit

method.
A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the goised in the C: y's fi ial
ts as at the bal sheet date:

3 Asat As at
Priomes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation 1139 7.20
Total employee benefit linbility 1139 720
Non-current 1139 7.18
Current — = 0.02
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and its components.

i} Reconcilintion of present value of defined benefit obligation
Particulnrs Spat Ay
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 720 516
Current service cost 4.96 364
Interest cost 0.52 035
Actuarin! (gains) / losses recognised in other prehensive income
- Changes in financial assumptions (0.01) (0.47)
- Experience adjustments (1.20) (1.48)
Benefit paid (0.08) -
Defined benefit obligntion as at 31 March 11.3% 7.20
C i) Exp recognised in the t of profit and loss
Particulnrs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Current service cost 4.96 3.64
Interest on defined benefit obligation / plan assets (net) 0.52 0.35
Net gratuity cost, included in ‘employee benefits' 5.48 3.99
C i) Re-megsuremenis recognised in other comprehensive income
Pariiculais For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obli (1.21) (1.95
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227

(i)

(iii)

el benefits ( PENENTY

proy

D Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial ptions at the teporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
Principal actuarial assumptions Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salary escalation rate 6.50% 6,50%
Discount rate 7.30% 7.29%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1st following year 0.13 0.02
Year2to $ 2.74 1.17
Year6t0 9 N 3.29
| Year 10 and above 29.92 20.61
ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actusarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (1.33) 1.61 (0.46) 0.51
|Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 1.61 (1.35) 1.07 (0,90

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption shown.

Defined contribution plan
z For the year ended For the year ended
ri
Foihime 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
t gnised in the of profit and loss towards
i) Provident fund 15.07 17.71

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (“Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has
been published in the Gazette of India However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The

Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes effective.
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2,28 Earnings per share (EPS)

2.29

2.30

- As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Earnings
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (411.65) (357.78)
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year 83,66,417 68,32,010
Add : Equity shares issued during the year 91,19,834 15,34,407
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,74,86,251 83,66,417
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year -Basic and Diluted 1,37,29,223 79,75,422
Eamnings per share of par value Rs. 1 each - Basic and Diluted (Rs.) (25.98) (44.86)

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares and therefore basic and diluted EPS are the same.

Segment information
The Board of Directors of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information

provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, medical and healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making
decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment” and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the
Ind AS Financial statements. Presently, the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual customer contributing
more than 10% of Company's total revenue. All non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets

of the Company are located in India.

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial
statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (The MSMED Act) is not expected
to be material, The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year

- Principal 1.98 3.18

- Interest - e

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the -
MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance =
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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2.31 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'net debt' to 'total equity' ratio.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was as follows:

Particulars At Asiag
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total borrowings 1,898.11 2,186.77
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2.88) (16.42)
Net debt 1,895.23 2,170.35
Total equity 1,578.11 1,128.31
Net debt to equity ratio - Gearing ratio 120.09% 192.35%

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity excluding capital
contribution.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current

year.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2023 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 164.23 164.23
Cash and cash equivalents 2.88 2.88 Level 3
Other financial assets 23.42 23.42
Total 190.53 190.53
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Long-term borrowings 1,753.91 1,753.91 Level 3
Short-term borrowings 144.20 144.20
Trade payables 170.81 170.81
Other financial liabilities 22.50 22.50
Total 2,091.42 2,091.42
As at 31 March 2022 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Trade receivables 99.84 99.84
Investments 0.95 0.95
Cash and cash equivalents 16.42 16.42 Level 3
Other financial assets 36.94 36.94
Total 154.15 154.15
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)
Long-term borrowings 1,516.69 1,516.69 Level 3
Lease liabilities 54.74 54,74
Short-term botrowings 670.08 670.08
Trade payables 301.98 301.98
Other financial liabilities 87.64 87.64
Total 2,631.13 2,631.13

Note for financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, short-term borrowings, investments, other financials assets, other financial liabilities,
cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their

short-term nature.

The fair values of long-term borrowings and lease liabilities are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified
as level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The
Board of Directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk

management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight
role by the intemal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which

are reported to the Board of Directors.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The
credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from
the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.
The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables and contract assets

based on the past and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables and
contract assets amounting to Rs. 254.87 as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 : Rs. 166.31). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of

trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

g As at As at
iiampnnpfor credit losses 31 March2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 50.75 13.43
Credit loss added / (reversed) 31.19 37.32
Closing balance 81.95 50.75

Trade receivable write off not routed through the above movement

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due in the provision matrix. Set out below
is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company’s trade receivables and contract asset using provision matrix:

Gross trade
Particulars Not past due E180jdaysiducipast] _More thanii80 receivables and
due date days past due date
contract assets
For the year ended 31 March 2023 78.79 83.50 92.58 254.87
For the year ended 31 March 2022 119.71 31.40 15.20 166.31

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2022.

Therefore the customer concenttatlon risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.
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2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium
term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a

timely and cost-effective manner.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2023:

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Long-term borrowings 1,753.91 - 567.50 1,195.00 1,762.50
Short-term bommowings 14420 14420 14420
Trade payables 170.81 170.81 - - 170.81
Other financial liabilities 22.50 22.50 - . 22.50
Total 2,091.42 337.51 567.50 1,195.00 2,100.01
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2022:

Particulars Carrying Value  Less than | year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Long-term borrowings 1,516.69 603.47 913.22 - 1,516.69
Lease liabilities 54.74 17.35 56.40 - 73.75
Short-term borrowings 670.08 670.08 - - 670.08
Trade payables 301.98 301.98 - - 301.98
Other financial liabilities 87.64 87.64 - - 87.64
Total 2,631.13 1,680.52 969.62 - 2,650.14

The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company to repay the loan earlier

than indicated in the above table.

(iv) Market risk

(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company’s horrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars Lk As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities and short term borrowings 1,898.11 2,186.77
Total borrowings 1,898.11 2,186.77
(b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis
Impact on profit and loss Equity, net of tax

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sensitivity

1% increase in MCLR (18.98) (21.87) (14.20) (16.36)

1% decrease in MCLR 18.98 21.87 14.20 16,36

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

(v) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk.
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2.33 Income-tax

a. Amount recognised in t of profit and loss
Particsd Faor the year ended  For the year ended

arfiewiars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Taxes for earlier years 134 -
Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences (0.35) 1.40
Tax expenses for the year 0.99 1.40
b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Before tax  Tax expense Net of tax Before tax Tax expense Net of tax

R on defined benefit plans 1.21 (0.35) 0.86 1.95 (0.51) 1.44

¢. Reconciliation of effcctive tax rate

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax (410.66) (356.38)
Enacted tax rates 25.17% 25.17%

Tax expense at enacted rates
Tax effect of amounts which are not ded

thle/ hle | tenlaf o &
in

Taxes for earlier years 1.34 -
Defierred tax asset not recognised on various items (net) 0.35) 140
0.99 1.40

Total
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised on unsued tax losses as it is not probable that there will be taxable profits against which it can be utilised in the future.
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234 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's from with 5!
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income from hospital services 855.19 1,015.71
Income from pharmacy 582.79 597.08
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,437.98 1,712.79
India 1,437.98 1,712.79
Outside India - -
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 855.19 1,015.71
Goods transferred at a point of time 582.79 697.08
- .—Total revenue from-contracts with-customers 143758 371575
R iliation of r recognised with the contracted price is as follows;
Contract price 1,532.40 1,825.25
Less: Discounts and disallowances (94.42) (112.46)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,437.98 1,712,79
Caontract balances
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As nt31 March 2022 As at 01 April 2021
Trade receivables 164.23 99.84 88.40
Contract assets 8.69 15.72 38.40
Contract liabilities 242 447 9.50
Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the company has r ised of Rs. 4.47 from advance received from patients outstanding as on 31 March
2022, During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has recognised of Rs. 9.50 from advance received from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2021. It expects
similarly to recognise revenue in year ended 31 March 2024 from the closing bal of ad from 3 a9 at 31 March 2023.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the company has transferred Rs. 15.72 of contract assets as at 31 March 2023 to trade receivables on completion of
performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has transferred Rs. 38.40 of contract assets as at 31 March 2022 to trade receivables on completion

of performance obligation.
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2.35 Ratio Analysis and its elements
: N Asat Asat s
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 “o change
Current Ratio* Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.70 0.19 261.14%
Debt-Equity ratio* Total Debts™ Shareholder's Equity 1.16 1.99 -41.69%
Debt service coverage ratio® Earnings for debts service®  Debt service®™ (0.08) 1.12) 93.19%
Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 7.66 8.55 -10.41%
Trade Receivable tumover Ratio®*  Net Credit Sales® Average Trade Receivables 10.94 18.27 -40.10%
Trade Payable tumover Ratio Net credit Purchases® Average Trade Payables 491 4.61 6.59%
Net Capital turnover ratio® Net Sales® Working capital® (13.54) (1.83) 638.45%
Return on Equity Ratio Net profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s equity -29.76% -31.98% -6.95%
Net Profit ratio** Net profit Net Sales® -28.63% -20.89% 37.05%
. Eamings before interestand  Capital Employed®
L
Retum on Capital employed taxes -5.64% 2.54% 121.95%
Return on Investment Interest (Finance Income) Time Weighted Average Investm 3.59% 3.93% -8.65%

M Debt includes Lease Liabilities

@ Net profit after taxes + Non-Operating expenses
® Interest and lease payments + Principal Repayments

“ Gross credit sales - sales return

© Gross credit purchases - purchase returns + Other expenses

© Total sales - sales return

@ Current assets - Current liabilities

® Tangible Net Worth + Total Debts + Deferred Tax Liability

* Repayment of borrowings and increase in equity during the year has resulted in the change in the ratio.

** Change in business operations has resulted in the change in the ratio.
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2.36 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have any
unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

2.37 Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(ix) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.
2.38 The figures of previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to those of the current year

2.39 Events after the reporting period

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting year.
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